
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING 
Wednesday, 03/06/2019 

AGENDA 
6:30 PM 

Tarea Hall Pittman  
South Branch 

1901 Russell Street 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704      510-981-6195      510-548-1240 (TDD)      510-981-6111 fax      BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A. Call to Order 
B. Public Comments – Speakers are allowed 3 minutes each for up to 10 speakers; if more than 10 individuals have 

filled out and submitted cards to speak, the time for all speakers will be reduced to 2 minutes per person and if more 
than 20 individuals have submitted speaker’s cards, the time per person will be reduced to one minute each, for a 
maximum of one hour of public comment. 

C. Comments from Library Unions – For regular meetings of the BOLT, representatives from the three unions 
representing Library employees may address BOLT, with a total time limit of 15 minutes. If all three (3) unions 
have representatives present and wish to speak, each union shall receive 5 minutes to address BOLT. If only two (2) 
unions have representatives present and wishing to speak, each union shall receive 7.5 minutes to address BOLT, for 
a total of 15 minutes. If only one (1) union has representatives present and wishing to speak, that union shall receive 
15 minutes to address BOLT. The Secretary shall, at the start of the Comment from Library Union item, ask union 
representatives who wish to speak to identify themselves and which union they represent. The Secretary shall then 
determine the appropriate allocation of speaking time according to the rules stated herein. 

i. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Community Services and PTRLA Units) 
ii. Public Employees Union, LOCAL 1 

iii. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Maintenance and Clerical Units) 
D. Comments from Board of Library Trustees  

II. PRESENTATION CALENDAR 

A. DRAFT-FY Biennial Budget 2020 & 2021 – Dennis Dang 
B. Berkeley Public Library Foundation - Kathy Huff 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Board will consider removal and addition of items to the Consent Calendar prior to voting on the Consent Calendar.  
All items remaining on the Consent Calendar will be approved in one motion. 

A. Approve Minutes of the February 6, 2019 Regular Meeting 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes of the February 6, 2019 Regular Meeting of the Board of Library Trustees. 

B. Apply for and Accept Grant Funds for STEM Programming 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to apply for and accept, if 
awarded, up to $65,000 in IMLS National Leadership Planning Grant funds to support developing a framework for a 
collaborative project with UC Berkeley Natural History Museums (BNHM). 

C. Close the Transactions Based Reimbursement Fund (302) and transfer the Fund Balance to the Library Tax 
Fund (301) 
Recommendation: Adopt the resolution authorizing the Library to submit to the City Council of the City of 
Berkeley, for inclusion to amendment pursuant to the Annual Appropriations Ordinance, an adjustment to the 
Library’s FY 2019 Budget closing the Transactions Based Reimbursement (TBR) Fund (302) via transfer of the 
Fund’s fund balance into the Library Tax Fund (301). 

IV. INFORMATION REPORTS 

A. Monthly Library Director’s Report – Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services 
B. Library Events – Calendar of events and press releases for various Library programs are posted at 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 
 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY   BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
AGENDA  March 6, 2019 Page 2 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704      510-981-6195      510-548-1240 (TDD)      510-981-6111 fax      BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

V. AGENDA BUILDING 

The next meeting will be a Regular Meeting held at 6:30 PM on Wednesday, March 6, 2019 at the Tarea Hall Pittman 
South Branch, 1901 Russell Street, Berkeley. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  
Communication Access Information 

This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a 
disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including 
auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 510-
981-6418 (V) or 510-981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting 
date. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting. 

I hereby certify that this amended agenda for the special meeting of the Board of Library Trustees of the City of 
Berkeley was posted in the display cases located at 2134 Martin Luther King, Jr. Way and in front of the Central 
Public Library at 2090 Kittredge Street as well as on the Berkeley Public Library’s website on February 27, 2019. 
   
 //s//   ____________________________________________________  
 Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 

For further information, please call (510) 981-6195. 

COMMUNICATIONS 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of the City’s records. Please 
note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any 
communication to a City board, commission or committee, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-
mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in 
person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or committee. If you do not want your contact information included in the 
public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, 
commission or committee for further information. 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for 
public inspection at Berkeley Public Library Administration Office located at 2090 Kittredge Street, 3rd Floor Admin Wing, Berkeley, 
CA 94704. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about/board-library-trustees 
and may be read at reference desks at the following locations: 

Central Library - 2090 Kittredge Street 
Claremont Branch – 2940 Benvenue Avenue 

West Branch – 1125 University Avenue 
  North Branch – 1170 The Alameda 

South Branch – 1901 Russell Street 

Communications: 

2/14/2019 Debra Bartling Overdue Policy 
2/16/2019 Nicole Meyer Canvas Bags 
2/18/2019 Sasha Langholz 17th Berkeley Public Library Authors dinner 
2/22/2019 Andrea Segall Library Survey 
2/22/2019 Karen Bruhns Survey 
2/25/2019 Ann Hotta Budget Presentation 

 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about/board-library-trustees


D
R

A
FT

-F
Y

 B
ie

nn
ia

l B
u

d
ge

t 
20

20
 &

 2
0

21
 

B
oa

rd
 o

f L
ib

ra
ry

 T
ru

st
ee

s
W

or
ks

ho
p

 –
M

a
rc

h 
6,

 2
0

19

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



B
oa

rd
 o

f L
ib

ra
ry

 T
ru

st
ee

s
B

u
d

ge
t 

P
ri

or
it

ie
s f

or
 F

Y
20

 a
nd

 F
Y

21
 (B

O
LT

#
: R

18
-0

59
, 1

2D
EC

18
)

•
Pr
ov

id
e 
ex
ce
lle
nt
, t
im

el
y,
 e
as
ily
‐a
cc
es
sib

le
 se

rv
ic
es
 a
nd

 in
fo
rm

at
io
n
to
 

th
e 
co
m
m
un

ity
•

Ch
am

pi
on

 a
nd

 d
em

on
st
ra
te
 so

ci
al
 a
nd

 ra
ci
al
 e
qu

ity
•

Pr
ov

id
e 
st
at
e‐
of
‐t
he

‐a
rt
, w

el
l m

ai
nt
ai
ne

d 
in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
, a

m
en

iti
es
, a

nd
 

fa
ci
lit
ie
s

•
De

ve
lo
p 
an

d 
en

ha
nc
e 
po

lic
ie
s,
 p
ra
ct
ic
es
, s
er
vi
ce
s,
 a
nd

 a
ss
ig
nm

en
ts
 th

at
 

pr
om

ot
e 
co
m
m
un

ity
 w
el
ln
es
s a

nd
 th

e 
sa
fe
ty
 a
nd

 c
om

fo
rt
 o
f a

ll 
us
er
s

•
Ha

rm
on

ize
 e
ffo

rt
s o

f t
he

 B
oa

rd
, m

an
ag
em

en
t, 
an

d 
st
af
f t
o 
im

pr
ov
e 

lib
ra
ry
 se

rv
ic
es
 b
y 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
re
co
m
m
en

da
tio

ns
 o
f t
he

 N
ov
em

be
r 

20
18

 O
rg
an

iza
tio

na
l E
va
lu
at
io
n 
re
po

rt
•

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
th
e 
st
ab

ili
ty
 o
f o

pe
ra
tin

g 
bu

dg
et
 a
nd

 p
la
n 
fo
r f
ut
ur
e 

op
er
at
io
na

l n
ee
ds

–
in
cl
ud

in
g 
es
ta
bl
ish

in
g 
/ m

ai
nt
ai
ni
ng

 a
 b
al
an

ce
d 

bu
dg

et

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



•
Ex
pa

nd
ed

 S
el
f‐s

er
vi
ce
 L
ap

to
p 
Le
nd

in
g 

•
U
pg

ra
de

d 
In
te
rn
et
 S
er
vi
ce
 to

 1
0 
Gi
ga
by

te
s 

•
In
te
gr
at
e 
Ev
al
ua

tiv
e 
Fi
nd

in
gs
 In

to
 P
ub

lic
 P
ro
gr
am

m
in
g 
Pr
ac
tic

es

•
In
iti
at
e 
So

ci
al
 M

ed
ia
 a
nd

 P
ub

lic
 C
om

m
un

ic
at
io
ns
 P
la
n 
fo
r H

ei
gh

te
ne

d 
Co

m
m
un

ity
 a
w
ar
en

es
s

•
As
se
ss
m
en

t o
f t
he

 C
en

tr
al
 L
ib
ra
ry
’s 
Hi
st
or
y 
Ro

om
 c
ol
le
ct
io
ns
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es
 fo

r d
ig
iti
za
tio

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov
ed

 a
cc
es
s

•
Im

pl
em

en
t s
tr
at
eg
ie
s p

er
 d
ra
ft
 C
ol
le
ct
io
n 
M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
lle
ct
io
n 
re
fr
es
hm

en
t a

nd
 id

en
tif
ic
at
io
n 
of
 n
ew

 c
ol
le
ct
io
n 
ar
ea

s t
o 
sa
tis
fy
 

di
ve
rs
e 
an

d 
ch
an

gi
ng

 c
om

m
un

ity
 in
te
re
st
s

K
ey

 O
ng

oi
ng

 E
ff

or
ts

 in
to

 F
Y

 2
0

20
-2

0
21

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



P
ro

je
ct

ed
 R

ev
en

u
e 

a
nd

 F
u

nd
 B

a
la

nc
e

Fu
nd

FY
20

Fu
nd

 B
al
an

ce
 

(b
eg

in
 F
Y2

0)
FY

21
Fu

nd
 B
al
an

ce
 

(b
eg

in
 F
Y2

1)

Li
br
ar
y 
Ta
x 

(*
be

gi
n 
ba

la
nc
e 
ne

t r
es
er
ve
)

$2
0,
12

8,
59

8 
$3

,8
52

,7
51

*
$2

0,
52

9,
73

0 
$1

,1
39

,3
58

*

Tr
an

sa
ct
io
ns
 B
as
ed

 
Re

im
bu

rs
em

en
ts

Cl
os
ed

 in
 F
Y1

9
Cl
os
ed

 in
 F
Y1

9
Cl
os
ed

 in
 F
Y1

9
Cl
os
ed

 in
 F
Y1

9

Gr
an

ts
$6

0,
00

0
$3

9,
25

4
$6

0,
00

0
$3

5,
16

5

Gi
ft
s

$1
05

00
0

$3
15

,3
70

$1
05

,0
00

$2
70

,3
70

Fo
un

da
tio

n
$0

$4
27

,4
06

$0
$3

27
,4
06

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



FY
20

:P
ro

je
ct

ed
 R

ev
en

u
es

Fu
nd

s –
30

1 a
nd

 3
0

4 
$2

0
,18

8,
59

8

Li
br
ar
y 
Ta
x 
Fu

nd
 

(t
ax
), 
$2

0,
05

6,
59

8 
, 

99
.3
%

G
ra
nt
s,
 $
60

,0
00

 , 
0.
3%

Li
br
ar
y 
Ta
x 
Fn

d 
(o
th
er
), 
$7

2,
00

0 
, 

0.
4%

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



Li
b

ra
ry

 T
a

x 
Fu

nd
 (

30
1)

C
P

I v
s 

P
IG

FY
10

FY
11

FY
12

FY
13

FY
14

FY
15

FY
16

FY
17

FY
18

FY
19

CP
I

0.
8%

1.
7%

2.
8%

2.
1%

2.
4%

2.
8%

3.
8%

5.
4%

3.
8%

3.
2%

PI
G

0.
6%

‐2
.5
%

2.
5%

3.
8%

5.
1%

‐0
.2
%

2.
4%

2.
7%

3.
7%

3.
7%

‐3
%

‐2
%

‐1
%0%1%2%3%4%5%6%

Increase % Rate

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



FY
20

:P
ro

je
ct

ed
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s
B

P
L 

on
ly

: F
u

nd
s –

30
1 a

nd
 3

0
4

$2
2,

87
2,

0
91

Ta
x 
Fu

nd
 (o

th
er
), 

$7
,2
90

,9
29

 , 
31

.9
%

Ta
x 
Fu

nd
 (s
ta
ff
), 

$1
5,
51

7,
07

3 
, 

67
.8
%

G
ra
nt
s,
 $
64

,0
89

 , 
0.
3%

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



Li
b

ra
ry

 T
a

x 
Fu

nd
 (

30
1)

FY
17

 –
FY

21
 (

$)

FY
17

Fi
na

l 
FY

18
Fi
na

l 
FY

19
Pr
oj
ec
te
d

FY
20

Pr
oj
ec
te
d 

FY
21

Pr
oj
ec
te
d 

Re
ve
nu

e
18

,2
91

,4
83

19
,4
16

,6
17

19
,8
94

,7
13

20
,1
28

,5
98

20
,5
29

,7
30

Li
br
ar
y 
Ta
x

18
,0
77

,4
84

19
,1
72

,6
29

19
,7
46

,4
63

20
,0
56

,5
98

20
,4
57

,7
30

O
th
er

21
3,
99

9
24

3,
98

8
14

8,
25

0
72

,0
00

72
,0
00

Ex
pe

ns
es

17
,2
42

,8
02

17
,3
19

,5
13

23
,5
71

,9
43

22
,8
41

,9
91

21
,3
85

,6
08

Pe
rs
on

ne
l

13
,6
16

,3
44

13
,5
06

,9
62

14
,7
30

,2
95

15
,5
17

,0
73

15
,9
09

,8
85

N
on

‐P
er
so
nn

el
3,
59

7,
74

6
3,
78

3,
60

2
8,
80

9,
60

7
7,
29

0,
92

9
5,
44

0,
92

9

Co
B

28
,7
12

28
,9
49

32
,0
41

33
,9
89

34
,7
94

Su
rp
lu
s 
/ 
Sh

or
tf
al
l

1,
04

8,
68

1
2,
09

7,
10

4
(3
,6
77

,2
30

)
(2
,7
13

,3
93

)
(8
55

,8
78

)

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



Li
b

ra
ry

 T
a

x 
Fu

nd
 (

30
1)

Fu
nd

 B
a

la
nc

e 
FY

17
 –

FY
21

 (
$)

FY
17

Fi
na

l 
FY

18
Fi
na

l 
FY

19
Pr
oj
ec
te
d*

FY
20

Pr
oj
ec
te
d 

FY
21

Pr
oj
ec
te
d 

Be
gi
n 
Fu

nd
 B
al
an

ce
$5

,7
87

,4
01

$6
,8
36

,0
82

$9
,0
29

,9
81

$5
,3
52

,7
51

$2
,6
39

,3
58

Su
rp
lu
s 
/ 
Sh

or
tf
al
l

1,
04

8,
68

1
2,
09

7,
10

4
(3
,6
77

,2
30

)
(2
,7
13

,3
93

)
(8
55

,8
78

)

Re
se
rv
e 
(fi
xe
d 
$ 
va
lu
e)

(1
,4
00

,0
00

)
(1
,5
00

,0
00

)
(1
,5
00

,0
00

)
(1
,5
00

,0
00

)
(1
,5
00

,0
00

)

En
d 
Fu

nd
 B
al
an

ce
$5

,4
36

,0
82

$7
,4
33

,1
86

$3
,8
52

,7
51

$1
,1
39

,3
58

$2
83

,4
80

* 
A

ss
um

es
 c

lo
su

re
 a

nd
 in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ns
ac

tio
n 

B
as

ed
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t F
un

d 
(3

02
/E

R
M

A
=1

02
)

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



Li
b

ra
ry

 T
a

x 
Fu

nd
 (

30
1)

R
ev

en
u

es
 v

s 
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s F
Y

10
 –

FY
21

$0
.0

$5
.0

$1
0.
0

$1
5.
0

$2
0.
0

$2
5.
0

FY
08

FY
09

FY
10

FY
11

FY
12

FY
13

FY
14

FY
15

FY
16

FY
17

FY
18

FY
19
*
FY

20
*
FY

21
*

Millions ($)

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

Re
ve
nu

es

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



Li
b

ra
ry

 T
a

x 
Fu

nd
 (

30
1)

B
P

L-
on

ly
: S

ta
ff

in
g 

to
 T

ot
a

l E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s

0510152025

FY
08

FY
09

FY
10

FY
11

FY
12

FY
13

FY
14

FY
15

FY
16

FY
17

FY
18

FY
19
 *

FY
20

*
FY

21
*

Millions ($)

O
th
er

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

Be
ne

fit
s

Sa
la
rie

s a
nd

 W
ag
es

* 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



C
a

lP
ER

S 
C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

Ty
pe

FY
19

‐A
ct
ua

l
FY

20
Pr
oj
ec
te
d

FY
21

Pr
oj
ec
te
d

M
isc

el
la
ne

ou
s

21
.4
00

%
23

.0
54

%
25

.5
48

%

•
Di
sc
ou

nt
 ra

te
 lo

w
er
ed

: F
Y2

0=
7.
25

%
; F
Y2

1=
7.
0%

•
Sm

oo
th
in
g 
to
 p
ay
 u
nf
un

de
d 
lia
bi
lit
ie
s t
o 
20

 y
ea

rs
 v
s 3

0 
ye
ar
s

•
PE

RS
 b
ill
in
g 
at
 a
 fi
xe
d 
do

lla
r v

al
ue

 v
s p

rio
r %

ag
e 
of
 p
ay
ro
ll

N
ot
e:
 R
at
es
 d
o 
no

t i
nc
lu
de

 th
e 
Co

B‐
pa

id
 E
m
pl
oy
ee

 R
at
e 
of
 8
%

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



FT
E 

b
y 

D
iv

isi
on

N
o.

N
am

e
Au

th
 1
9

Pr
op

 2
0

Pr
op

 2
1

91
01

Ad
m
in
is
tr
at
io
n

12
.0
00

12
.0
00

12
.0
00

91
02

In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
Sy
st
em

s
5.
00
0

5.
00
0

5.
00
0

91
03

Fa
ci
lit
ie
s M

ai
nt
en

an
ce

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

92
01

Ci
rc
ul
at
io
n 
Se

rv
ic
es

24
.0
50

23
.0
50

23
.0
50

92
02

Ch
ild

re
ns
 S
er
vi
ce
s

6.
40
0

6.
40
0

6.
40
0

92
03

Ar
t+
M
us
ic

3.
50
0

3.
50
0

3.
50
0

92
04

Re
fe
re
nc
e

8.
70
0

8.
70
0

8.
70
0

92
05

Li
te
ra
cy
 P
ro
gr
am

s
2.
50
0

2.
50
0

2.
50
0

93
01

Se
rv
ic
e 
De

si
gn

 U
ni
t

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

93
02

N
or
th
 B
ra
nc
h

9.
00
0

9.
00
0

9.
00
0

93
03

TH
P 
So

ut
h 
Br
an

ch
8.
00
0

8.
00
0

8.
00
0

93
04

W
es
t B

ra
nc
h

8.
00
0

8.
00
0

8.
00
0

93
05

Cl
ar
em

on
t B

ra
nc
h

7.
75
0

7.
75
0

7.
75
0

93
07

To
ol
 Le

nd
in
g 
Li
br
ar
y

2.
25
0

2.
25
0

2.
25
0

94
01

Te
ch
ni
ca
l S
er
vi
ce
s

6.
00
0

6.
00
0

6.
00
0

94
02

Co
lle

ct
io
ns
 M

an
ag
em

en
t

2.
00
0

2.
00
0

2.
00
0

11
1.
15
0

11
0.
15
0

11
0.
15
0

Di
vi
si
on

Ca
re
er
: T
ot
al

FT
E

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



FY
20

 a
nd

 F
Y

21
: P

ro
p

os
ed

De
pD

iv
Ti
tle

N
ot
es

FY
19

FY
20

FY
21

91
01

AC
CO

UN
TI
N
G 
O
FF
 S
PE

C 
III
 U

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
AC

CO
UN

TI
N
G 
O
FF
 S
PE

C 
III
 U

up
gr
de

 to
: A

ss
is
t. 
An

al
ys
t

1.
00

    
 

AD
M
IN
 &
 F
IS
CA

L S
VS

 M
GR

 U
N

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
AD

M
IN
 S
EC

RE
TA

RY
1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
AS

SI
ST
AN

T 
M
AN

GM
N
T 
AN

LS
T 
U

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
AS

SI
ST
AN

T 
M
AN

GM
N
T 
AN

LS
T 
U

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
AS

SI
ST
AN

T 
M
AN

GM
N
T 
AN

LS
T 
U

up
gr
de

d 
fr
: A

O
SI
II

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
AS

SI
ST
AN

T 
HU

M
AN

 R
ES
RC

S 
AN

LS
T 
U

up
gr
de

d 
fr
: O

SI
I

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
AS

SO
CI
AT

E 
HU

M
AN

 R
ES
RC

S 
AN

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
DE

PU
TY
 D
IR
EC

TO
R 
LI
BR

AR
Y 
S

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
DI
RE

CT
O
R 
O
F 
LI
BR

AR
Y 
SE
RV

I
1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
SE
RV

IC
ES
 M

AN
AG

ER
1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
SE
RV

IC
ES
 M

AN
AG

ER
1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
O
FF
IC
E 
SP

EC
IA
LI
ST
 II
 U
N
RE

up
gr
de

 to
: H

R 
As

si
st
. A

na
ly
st

1.
00

    
  12
.0
0

  
12
.0
0

  
12
.0
0

  

FT
E

Po
si
tio

n

Ad
m
in
is
tr
at
io
n

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



FY
20

 a
nd

 F
Y

21
: P

ro
p

os
ed

De
pD

iv
Ti
tle

N
ot
es

FY
19

FY
20

FY
21

91
03

BU
IL
DI
N
G 
M
AI
N
T 
M
EC

H
1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
BU

IL
DI
N
G 
M
AI
N
T 
M
EC

H
dw

ng
rd
ed

 fr
: M

ai
nt
 S
up

v
1.
00

    
1.
00

    
BU

IL
DI
N
G 
M
AI
N
T 
SU

PV
dw

ng
rd
e 
to
: M

ai
nt
 M

ec
h

1.
00

    
 

SE
N
IO
R 
BU

IL
DI
N
G 
M
AI
N
T 
SU

P
1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
3.
00

    
 

3.
00

    
3.
00

    

FT
E

Fa
ci
lit
ie
s M

ai
nt
en

an
ce

Po
si
tio

n

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



FY
20

 a
nd

 F
Y

21
: P

ro
p

os
ed

De
pD

iv
Ti
tle

N
ot
es

FY
19

FY
20

FY
21

92
01

CI
RC

UL
AT

IO
N
 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
M
AN

A
1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

re
m
ov

e
0.
50

    
 

LI
BR

AR
Y 
AI
DE

re
m
ov

e
0.
50

    
 

LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
ST
AN

T
0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
ST
AN

T
1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
ST
AN

T
0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
ST
AN

T
0.
75

    
 

0.
75

    
0.
75

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
ST
AN

T
0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
ST
AN

T
0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
ST
AN

T
0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
ST
AN

T
1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
ST
AN

T
0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
ST
AN

T
1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
ST
AN

T
0.
50

    
 

0.
50

    
0.
50

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
SP

EC
IA
LI
ST
 I 

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
LI
BR

AR
Y 
SP

EC
IA
LI
ST
 I 

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
M
AI
L S

ER
VI
CE

S 
AI
DE

0.
80

    
 

0.
80

    
0.
80

    
M
AI
L S

ER
VI
CE

S 
AI
DE

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
SU

PE
RV

IS
IN
G 
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
S

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
SU

PE
RV

IS
IN
G 
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
S

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
SU

PE
RV

IS
IN
G 
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
S

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
SU

PE
RV

IS
IN
G 
LI
BR

AR
Y 
AS

SI
S

1.
00

    
 

1.
00

    
1.
00

    
24
.0
5

  
23
.0
5

  
23
.0
5

  

FT
E

Ci
rc
ul
at
io
n 
Se

rv
ic
es

Po
si
tio

n

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



FT
E 

b
y 

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
ti

on
Ti
tl
e

FT
E

C
o
u
n
t

FT
E

C
o
u
n
t

D
IR
EC

TO
R
 O
F 
LI
B
R
A
R
Y 
SE
R
V
I

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

D
EP

U
TY
 D
IR
EC

TO
R
 L
IB
R
A
R
Y 
S

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

SE
N
IO
R
 B
U
IL
D
IN
G
 M

A
IN
T 
SU

P
1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

A
D
M
IN
 &
 F
IS
C
A
L 
SV

S 
M
G
R
 U
N

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

A
SS
IS
TA

N
T 
M
A
N
G
M
N
T 
A
N
LS
T 
U

2.
00
0

2.
00
0

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

A
SS
IS
TA

N
T 
H
U
M
A
N
 R
ES
R
C
S 
A
N
LS
T 
U

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

LI
B
R
A
R
Y 
IN
FO

 S
YS
TE
M
S 
A
D
M
I

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

LI
B
R
A
R
Y 
SE
R
V
IC
ES
 M

A
N
A
G
ER

2.
00
0

2.
00
0

2.
00
0

2.
00
0

C
IR
C
U
LA

TI
O
N
 S
ER

V
IC
ES
 M

A
N
A

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

SU
P
ER

V
IS
IN
G
 L
IB
R
A
R
IA
N

8.
00
0

8.
00
0

8.
00
0

8.
00
0

LI
B
R
A
R
IA
N
 II
 

19
.8
00

22
.0
00

19
.8
00

22
.0
00

LI
B
R
A
R
IA
N
 I 

1.
50
0

2.
00
0

1.
50
0

2.
00
0

SE
N
IO
R
 L
IB
R
A
R
IA
N

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

LI
B
R
A
R
Y 
LI
TE
R
A
C
Y 
P
R
O
G
 C
O
O

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

A
SS
O
C
IA
TE
 H
U
M
A
N
 R
ES
R
C
S 
A
N

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

IN
FO

R
M
A
TI
O
N
 S
YS
TE
M
S 
SP

EC
3.
00
0

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

LI
B
R
A
R
Y 
A
SS
IS
TA

N
T

14
.2
50

24
.0
00

14
.2
50

24
.0
00

A
C
C
O
U
N
TI
N
G
 O
FF
 S
P
EC

 II
I U

2.
00
0

2.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

LI
B
R
A
R
Y 
A
ID
E

14
.0
00

28
.0
00

13
.0
00

26
.0
00

LI
B
R
A
R
Y 
SP

EC
IA
LI
ST
 I 

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

3.
00
0

M
A
IL
 S
ER

V
IC
ES
 A
ID
E

1.
80
0

2.
00
0

1.
80
0

2.
00
0

LI
B
R
A
R
Y 
SP

EC
IA
LI
ST
 II
 

13
.5
50

17
.0
00

13
.5
50

17
.0
00

A
D
M
IN
 S
EC

R
ET
A
R
Y

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

O
FF
IC
E 
SP

EC
IA
LI
ST
 II
 U
N
R
E

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
 M

A
IN
T 
M
EC

H
1.
00
0

1.
00
0

2.
00
0

2.
00
0

B
U
IL
D
IN
G
 M

A
IN
T 
SU

P
V

1.
00
0

1.
00
0

TO
O
L 
LE
N
D
IN
G
 S
P
EC

IA
LI
ST

2.
25
0

3.
00
0

2.
25
0

3.
00
0

SU
P
ER

V
IS
IN
G
 L
IB
R
A
R
Y 
A
SS
IS

9.
00
0

9.
00
0

9.
00
0

9.
00
0

C
ar
e
e
r:
 T
o
ta
l

11
1.
15
0

14
2.
00
0

11
0.
15
0

14
0.
00
0

FY
20
 a
n
d
 F
Y2
1

A
u
th
 F
Y1
9

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



FY
 2

0
20

 B
u

d
ge

t 
H

ig
hl

ig
ht

s
Li

b
ra

ry
 T

a
x 

Fu
nd

 (
30

1)

N
on

‐D
is
cr
et
io
na

ry
•

Sa
la
rie

s a
nd

 W
ag
es
: u

p 
$4

96
,1
54

 to
 F
Y1

9 
Bu

dg
et

•
Ca

lP
ER

S:
 u
p 
$4

41
,2
57

 to
 F
Y1

9 
Bu

dg
et

•
Re

se
rv
e:
 $
1,
50

0,
00

0
•

Ja
ni
to
ria

l S
er
vi
ce
: $

41
6,
66

7;
 u
p 
$2

16
,6
67

 to
 B
as
e

•
Co

B
PC

 R
ep

la
ce
m
en

t/
Li
ce
ns
es
 $
17

9,
62

4

D
is
cr
et
io
na

ry
 (a

llo
ca
te
d)

•
Sa
la
ry
 S
av
in
gs
: $

45
0,
00

0;
 u
p 
$1

50
,0
00

 to
 B
as
e

•
Tr
av
el
: $

45
,0
00

; d
ow

n 
$2

5,
50

0 
to
 B
as
e

•
Li
br
ar
y 
M
at
er
ia
ls:
 $
1,
83

0,
00

0;
 u
p 
$5

0,
00

0 
to
 B
as
e

•
Fa
ci
lit
ie
s I
m
pr
ov
em

en
ts
: $

2,
15

0,
00

0

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



Su
m

m
a

ry
B

ie
nn

ia
l B

u
d

ge
t 

fo
r 

FY
20

 a
nd

 F
Y

21
M
at
er
ia
l I
te
m
s:

•
Li
br
ar
y 
Ta
x 
In
de

x 
Ra

te
 fo

r F
Y 
20

20
 u
nk

no
w
n

•
Ca

lP
ER

S 
Co

nt
rib

ut
io
ns
 –
3 
po

lic
y 
ch
an

ge
s:
 (r
ed

uc
ed

 d
isc

ou
nt
 ra

te
, 

re
du

ce
d 
sm

oo
th
in
g 
to
 2
0 
ye
ar
s,
 b
ill
in
g 
by
 sp

ec
ifi
c 
$ 
no

t %
.

•
Ce

nt
ra
l L
ib
ra
ry
 c
on

st
ru
ct
io
n:
 In

te
rio

r a
nd

 E
xt
er
io
r

•
CO

LA
s f
or
 F
Y 
20

21
 u
nk

no
w
n

•
Li
nk

+ 
pr
og

ra
m
 is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in
 th

e 
Li
br
ar
y 
Ta
x 
Fu

nd
Ad

dr
es
s 
pr
io
rit
ie
s&

 se
rv
ic
e 
co
m
m
itm

en
ts
:

•
Pu

bl
ic
 se

rv
ic
e 
an

d 
so
ci
al
 e
qu

ity
•

Ri
gh

t a
nd

 p
ro
pe

r s
ta
ffi
ng

•
Pr
ud

en
t u

se
 o
f f
un

d 
ba

la
nc
es

•
M
ai
nt
ai
n 
lib

ra
rie

s f
isc

al
 a
nd

 p
hy
sic

al
 h
ea
lth

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



B
ie

nn
ia

l B
u

d
ge

t 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

C
a

le
nd

a
r

14
 N
O
V 
20

18
Di
sc
us
sio

n 
an

d 
Po

ss
ib
le
 A
ct
io
n 
on

 F
Y 
20

20
 a
nd

FY
 2
02

1 
Bu

dg
et
 P
rio

rit
ie
s

12
 D
EC

 2
01

8
Di
sc
us
sio

n 
an

d 
Ac

tio
n 
on

 F
Y 
20

20
 a
nd

FY
 2
02

1 
Bu

dg
et
 P
rio

rit
ie
s

27
 F
EB

 2
01

9
St
af
f B

ud
ge
t P

re
se
nt
at
io
n

6 
M
AR

 2
01

9
BO

LT
 B
ud

ge
t W

or
ks
ho

p

29
 M

AR
 2
01

9
Al
l‐S

ta
ff 
Pr
es
en

ta
tio

n

3 
AP

R 
20

19
BO

LT
 R
ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o
n 
Dr
af
t B

ud
ge
t

1 
M
AY

 2
01

9
BO

LT
 R
ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o
n 
Dr
af
t B

ud
ge
t, 
Te
nt
at
iv
e 
Ad

op
tio

n

25
 JU

N
 2
01

9
BO

LT
 R
ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
to
 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il,
 F
in
al
 A
do

pt
io
n

II Presentation Calendar 
Item A



 

III Consent Calendar 
Item A 

MINUTES 
Berkeley Public Library - Board off Library Trustees Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, February 6, 2019 6:30 PM 

Central Library – 2090 Kittredge Street 

Board of Library Trustees: 
Diane Davenport, President  Sophie Hahn 
John Selawsky, Vice President Judy Hunt 
 Amy Roth 

 

 

Page 1 02/06/2019 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A copy of the agenda packet can be found at http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about/board-library-trustees 

1. Call to Order: 6:31 pm. 

Present:  Trustees Davenport, Hahn, Hunt, Roth and Selawsky. 
Trustee Hahn arrived at 6:35pm. 

Absent:  None  

Also Present: Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services; Jay Dickinson, Circulation Services 
Manager; Sarah Dentan, Library Services Manager; Anna Gonzalez, Library Services Manager; Alicia 
Abramson, Information Technology Manager; Danielle McMillian, Assoc. Human Resources Analyst; Eve 
Franklin, Administrative Secretary. 

2. Public Comments:  1 speakers. 

3. Comments from Library Unions: 

A. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Maintenance and Clerical Units) –  0  speakers 
B. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Community Services and PTRLA Units) –  0   speaker 
C. Public Employees Union, LOCAL 1 –  0   speakers 

4. Comments from Board of Library Trustees –  

A. Trustee Hunt – spoke regarding the book Why Learn History (When It's Already on Your Phone) by 
Sam Wineburg and the desire to provide programming for young people on life skills, public 
speaking and interpersonal relationships. 

B. Trustee Davenport – spoke about upcoming Authors Dinner on Saturday night and the Silent Auction 
which is open to everyone. 

II. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Action: M/S/C Trustee Selawsky / Trustee Hahn to adopt resolution # R19-003 to approve the consent calendar 
with as presented. 
Vote:  Ayes: Trustees Davenport, Hahn, Hunt, Roth and Selawsky. Noes: None. Absent: None. Abstentions: 
None. 

A. Approve Minutes of the January 2, 2019 Regular Meeting 
From: Acting Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to approve the minutes of the January 2, 2019 Regular Meeting of 
the Board of Library Trustees as presented. 
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services 
Action: Adopted resolution # R19-004. 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about/board-library-trustees


 

Page 2 02/06/2019 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

B. Contract: Janitorial Services for Berkeley Public Library 
From: Library Services Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to execute a contract 
and any amendments with PRIDE Industries One, Inc. for janitorial services at all Berkeley Public Library 
locations, for an amount not to exceed $1,250,000, from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022. 
Financial Implications: See report. 
Contact: Sarah Dentan, Library Services Manager 
Action: Adopted resolution # R19-005. 

C. Contract Amendment: L.J. Kruse Company 
From: Library Services Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to amend Contract No. 
9004 (ERMA: 91259-1) with L.J. Kruse Company for HVAC and plumbing repair and preventative 
maintenance in an incremental amount of $50,000 for a contracted value not-to-exceed $425,000; and to 
extend the Contract’s date of expiration to September 30, 2020 from February 28, 2019. 
Financial Implications: See report. 
Contact: Sarah Dentan, Library Services Manager 
Action: Adopted resolution # R19-006. 

D. Contract Amendment: No. 10859 Java Connections, LLC (dba LaptopsAnytime) 
From: Library Information Systems Administrator  
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to amend Contract No. 
10859 (ERMA:  119062-1) with Java Connections, LLC (dba LaptopsAnytime) to provide for an increase of 
$37,011 from $49,000, thereby increasing the Contract’s allowable not-to-exceed amount to $86, 011. 
Financial Implications: See report. 
Contact: Alicia Abramson, Library Information Systems Administrator 
Action: Adopted resolution # R19-007. 

E. Closure to Support Effective Migration to CARL X 
From: Acting Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt the resolution approving closure of the Central Library on Sunday, June 30, 2019 
and all libraries on Monday July 1, 2019 to support a successful Integrated Library System migration. 
Financial Implications: See report. 
Contact: Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services 
Action: Adopted resolution # R19-008. 

III. INFORMATION CALENDAR 
A. Recruitment Practices Oral Report – LaTanya Bellow, Director Human Resources, City of Berkeley 

provided a presentation (Attachment 1) 
From: LaTanya Bellow 
Contact: LaTanya Bellow 

B. Moss Adams Contract Update and Next Steps 
From: Acting Director of Library Services 
Contact: Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services 
Action: Received 

C. Monthly Library Director’s Report – Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services 
From: Acting Director of Library Services 
Contact: Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services 
Action: Received 



 

Page 3 02/06/2019 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

D. Library Events 
From: Acting Director of Library Services 
Contact: Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services 
Action: Received 

IV. AGENDA BUILDING 
• Central Renovation Plans 

V. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourned at 7:26 PM.  

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the regular meeting of February 
6, 2019 as approved by the Board of Library Trustees 

//s// _______________________________  

Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services, acting as secretary to BOLT 

Attachments:  
1. Recruitment Practices Oral Report  





 

 

III Consent Calendar 
Item B 

 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 03/06/19 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Sarah Dentan, Library Services Manager 

Subject: Adopt a Resolution to Apply for and Accept Grant Funds for STEM Programming 

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to apply for and accept, if awarded, up to 
$65,000 in IMLS National Leadership Planning Grant funds to support developing a framework for a 
collaborative project with UC Berkeley Natural History Museums (BNHM).  

INTRODUCTION 
The Institute of Museum and Library Services (IMLS) is the primary source of federal support for the nation’s 
approximately 123,000 libraries and 35,000 museums. National Leadership Grants for Libraries (NLG-L) 
support projects that enhance the quality of library and archive services nationwide by advancing theory 
and practice. 

Grant funds will enable Library staff, in partnership with BNHM staff, to assess patron needs; prototype and 
test STEM program elements; disseminate results and best practices to national Library and University 
Museum audiences; and develop a plan for longer-term collaboration. Outputs will include two STEM 
summer camps targeting middle-school-aged children, and circulating kits incorporating museum 
collections. In addition to project expenses, the grant will fund conference participation by key project staff, 
advisory board participation, and outside evaluation if recommended by the IMLS program officer.  

FISCAL IMPACTS 
The acceptance of these gift funds will have no negative impact on the Library budget. Upon acceptance, the 
funds will be appropriated to the fiscal year 2020 expenditure budget. 

BACKGROUND 
After the April 2018 launch of Cornerstones: STEM at Berkeley Public Library, staff were approached by the 
UC Berkeley Museum of Paleontology to explore partnership opportunities. This grant application is a result 
of that exploration.  

The application process for the NLG-L program consists of two phases: Preliminary Proposal and Invited Full 
Proposal. In September 2018, Berkeley Public Library submitted a Preliminary Proposal; in January 2019, the 
Library was invited to submit a Full Proposal, due March 20, 2019.  

FUTURE ACTION 
No future action is necessary. 

CONTACT PERSON 
Sarah Dentan, Library Services Manager, 510-981-6106 
 

Attachments:  
1: Resolution 

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


 
 



Attachment #1 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION NO: R19-___ 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

AUTHORIZING THE LIBRARY SERVICES DIRECTOR TO APPLY FOR AND ACCEPT IMLS NATIONAL LEADERSHIP 
PLANNING GRANT FUNDS  

 
WHEREAS, The Institute of Museum and Library Services (IMLS) is the primary source of federal support for 
the nation’s museums and libraries; and  
 
WHEREAS, National Leadership Grants for Libraries (NLG-L) support projects that enhance the quality of 
library and archive services nationwide by advancing theory and practice; and 
 
WHEREAS, Berkeley Public Library submitted a Preliminary Proposal to IMLS for funds to support developing 
a collaborative project with UC Berkeley Natural History Museums; and 
 
WHEREAS, on the strength of that proposal Berkeley Public Library has been invited by the IMLS to submit a 
Full Proposal; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley hereby 
authorizes the Director of Library Services to apply for and accept, if awarded, up to $65,000 in IMLS 
National Leadership Planning Grant funds. 
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on Wednesday, 
March 6, 2019 by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  
  _______________________________________________  
 Diane Davenport, President 
 
  _______________________________________________  
 Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustee 
 

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org




 

  III Consent Calendar 
 Item C 

 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 March 6, 2019 

 
To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Dennis Dang, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager 

Subject: Close the Transactions Based Reimbursement Fund (302) and transfer the Fund Balance to the 
Library Tax Fund (301) 

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt the resolution authorizing the Library to submit to the City Council of the City of Berkeley, for inclusion 
to amendment pursuant to the Annual Appropriations Ordinance, an adjustment to the Library’s FY 2019 
Budget closing the Transactions Based Reimbursement (TBR) Fund (302) via transfer of the Fund’s fund 
balance into the Library Tax Fund (301). 

FISCAL IMPACTS 
This recommendation, which constitutes the Library’s second amendment item to the City’s Annual 
Appropriations Ordinance, requests authorization from the City Council to close the Transactions Based 
Reimbursement Fund (302) via transfer of the Fund’s fund balance, at an approximate current value of 
$90,602, into the Library Tax Fund (301). 

BACKGROUND 
The City’s Annual Appropriations Ordinance (AAO) establishes expenditure limits by Fund for FY 2019. 
Throughout the year, the City takes actions that amend the adopted budget. These may include, but are not 
limited to, the acceptance of new grants, revisions to existing grants, and adjustments to adopted expenditure 
authority due to emergency needs. The City Charter vests the Board of Library Trustees with the power to 
manage the Library; consequent to this, Library requests for adjustments to the adopted budget are 
recommended by the Board to the City Council for inclusion to the Annual Appropriations Ordinance. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
The Transactions Based Reimbursement Fund (302) was originally funded by revenue received by the 
California State Library, and of which due to unmet State Library revenue thresholds payments to participating 
libraries were discontinued effective fiscal year 2013. State funding was designed to encourage libraries’ 
participation in Interlibrary Loan (ILL) services that allowed patrons to request materials from other 
participating libraries in California. The level of funding was tied to the number of materials a library lent to 
other institutions.  

The Library transitioned away from ILL, yet retained a positive balance in the TBR Fund (302).  The Library 
continued to use that Fund to account for costs and revenues related to the Link+ lending program, a 
cooperative engagement among California & Nevada public and academic libraries to provide access for BPL 
cardholders to participating libraries’ materials via a courier service and to partially subsidize costs for the 
provision of public-use copiers. Effective December 1, 2018 by adoption of BOLT Resolution No.: R18-053 on 
November 14, 2018, the Board of Library Trustees authorized terminating the imposition of late fees 
applicable to Link+ materials. Prior to the adopted resolution the TBR Fund (302) received unrestricted-use 
receipts from fines related to late return of Link+ materials. As a result, there is currently no revenue source 
for this Fund. 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Close the Transactions Based Reimbursement Fund (302) and transfer  
the Fund Balance to the Library Tax Fund (301) Page 2 
 
To date, the TBR Fund (302) has an unrestricted fund balance of approximately $90,602. Recognizing that 1) 
recent Link+ revenue into the Fund was insubstantial (FY18=$1,205; FY17=$1,401; and FY16=$1,400), 2) future 
program revenue is not anticipated as authorized by adoption of BOLT Resolution No.: R18-053, and 3) a 
declining Fund balance due to ongoing program participation expenditures of which the BPL will continue to 
bear, the Library requests that the upcoming biennial budget cycle integrate Link+ program participation into 
its normal operating expenses paid through the Library Tax Fund (301) – effectively closing the TBR Fund (302) 
and transferring any remaining fund balance into the Library Tax Fund (301). 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Effective December 1, 2018 by adoption of BOLT Resolution No.: R18-053, dated November 14, 2018, the 
Board of Library Trustees authorized terminating the imposition of late fees applicable to Link+ materials – at 
that date, the only source of revenue into the TBR Fund (302). The Berkeley Public Library will continue to 
bear Link+ program participation costs, thus continuing to draw down the Fund’s balance. Consequently, the 
Library seeks to close the TBR Fund (302) and transfer the Fund’s balance into the Library Tax Fund (301), 
which is the Fund through which the bulk of ongoing operational programs are funded. 

 

Attachments 
1. Resolution



 
Attachment 1 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO: R19-___ 

 
CLOSE THE TRANSACTIONS BASED REIMBURSEMENT FUND (302) AND  

TRANSFER THE FUND BALANCE TO THE LIBRARY TAX FUND (301) 

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2018, BOLT Resolution No. No.: R18-053 authorized terminating the imposition 
and collection of late fees applicable to Link+ materials; and 

WHEREAS, the Transactions Based Reimbursement Fund (302) was solely funded by late fines collected from 
lending related to Link+; and 

WHEREAS, the Library will continue to bear Link+ program participation costs, thus continuing to draw down 
the Fund’s balance of approximately $90,602; and 

WHEREAS, as the Transaction Based Fund’s fund balance is unrestricted the Library seeks to close Fund (302) 
and transfer the Fund’s fund balance into the Library Tax Fund (301), which is the Fund through which the 
bulk of ongoing operational programs are funded; and  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley hereby 
recommends to the City Council of the City of Berkeley, for inclusion to amendment pursuant to the Annual 
Appropriations Ordinance, an adjustment to the Library’s fiscal year 2019 Adopted Budget closing the 
Transaction Based Fund (302) via transfer of the Fund’s fund balance into the Library Tax Fund (301). 

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley during a regular meeting held on March 6, 
2019 by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  
 
  _______________________________________________  
 Diane Davenport, President 

 
  _______________________________________________  
  Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services 

 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 





 

IV Information Calendar 
Item B 

 INFORMATION REPORTS 
 March 6, 2019 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services 

Subject: Director’s Report 

Central Library Renovations: 

In February, design firm Noll & Tam submitted permit sets to the City of Berkeley Planning Department for 
review of the Central Library Improvement project plans. The Planning Department indicated that this would 
be treated as a priority project.  Response is expected by the end of the month. The City of Berkeley Public 
Works Department is project managing the project and has developed a draft project schedule that 
indicates a likely construction period of roughly ten months--July 2019 through May 2020. 

The Library is working with Noll & Tam staff to prepare an overview of the project at the April 2019 BOLT 
meeting via an oral information report. Here is a sneak peak of the new floor design and desk arrangement 
on the first floor:  

 
The team of Library staff leading the design of the Central Library’s renovations developed the following 
brief overview of the decision making process related to the planned renovations:  

Origins 2009 
As part of the planning for the Measure FF Neighborhood Libraries Improvement Program, the Library hired 
design consultant Page + Morris to study usage of the Central Library and to make recommendations for 
facility improvement.  A few low-cost recommendations were immediately implemented while others were 
deferred until the Neighborhood Libraries Improvement project was completed.  

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORT 
Director’s Report Page 2 
 
2014 
When branch libraries were completed in 2014, the Library refocused attention to those 2009 
recommendations for recalibration and reconsideration. The Library hired architects Noll & Tam to facilitate 
an inclusive process for staff and community participation in redesigning elements of the Central Library. 

Steering committee 
A staff steering committee convened. The committee’s charge was to represent and advocate for functional 
elements of the design relevant to the work of their divisions. They were tasked with sharing information 
with unit staff and reporting staff concerns. The committee identified key aspects of the project: the 
importance of a new teen room, additional seating options, quiet study area enhancement, improved 
collection access, improved lighting, and, most of all, space flexibility. 

Staff workshops 
Four staff workshops led by Noll & Tam solicited staff input and feedback on space usage and functions. Staff 
identified patrons’ browsing tendencies and seating usage. There was conversation about various issues. 
Interaction with staff led to significant adjustments to the plans.  

Teen Room 
A major element of the plan is to create a dedicated teen area on the first floor. When Noll & Tam initiated 
the design process, teens comprised 14% of the City’s population. The architects also recognized Berkeley 
High School’s proximity to the Central Library as an opportunity to provide access to effective leadership, 
learning, and engagement opportunities for students.  

Teen participation 
To ensure the teen space would be attractive to teenagers and would effectively serve their interests, a 
taskforce of thirteen teens was convened. In subsequent years the architects engaged two more taskforces.  
These teens visited other Bay Area Libraries, and considered and recommended a number of design 
elements, including furnishings, flooring, and lighting. 

Community participation 
In addition to staff and teens, two public community workshops were held. Discussions focused on ensuring 
that collection depth would be retained, and that the design would enhance patron access to staff support. 

BOLT approval 
In July, 2014, BOLT held a special meeting to hear the design team’s findings and recommendations. The 
board approved development of the teen room and other space enhancements. Despite approval of the 
plans, the time period from 2014 through 2017 saw a turnover of directors and little progress occurred.  

2017 to the present 
In mid-2017, a new staff taskforce was convened to reconsider the plans and make recommendations about 
adjustments based on changes in library usage patterns and community needs.  Up to twelve staff members 
from various units and classifications comprised this team. They immediately suggested some simple but 
significant changes to the first floor. These were based on the need for more seating and the need to provide 
more public access computers.  

The Commons and other changes 
To this end, a new area with more seating options, The Commons, opened in late July 2018. A self-service 
laptop lending station was installed.  The taskforce is currently monitoring usage. Furthermore, the team 
recommended a number of enhancements to the plans developed by Noll & Tam, including flooring updates, 
creation of additional seating areas on both the first and second floors, enhancement of the teen area 
design, creation of all-gender bathrooms, and identification of optimal staff desk placement, with the 
addition of a mobile desk to the teen area for the option of afternoon staffing. 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORT 
Director’s Report Page 3 
 
The Berkeley Public Library Foundation has played a significant role publicizing and raising funds for the 
project, committing hundreds of thousands of dollars for the purpose of updated furnishing and equipment. 

Programming: 
In February, Berkeley Public Library celebrated Black History Month. Highlights of this month’s programs 
included a history of the Black Panther Party at Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch. The program, attended by 
more than 40 patrons, received positive press attention both before and after the event.  85 people 
attended the Central Library’s program featuring author and spoken word artist Phavia Kujichagulia, Racism: 
The Elephant in the Room. Programs for young people related to Black History Month included Muriel 
Johnson sharing stories of the African Diaspora at Central, and the interactive art and music program JazzArt 
at North Branch, attended by 48 and 47, respectively.   

In addition, 125 people braved the rain to attend a special visit from author Ryan North, hosted by the North 
Branch at the Northbrae Community Church and funded by the Pace Trust. North discussed his book How to 
invent Everything: A Survival Guide for the Stunned Time Traveler which is an accessible, readable and 
humorous look at the foundational technologies of our society 

Author Ilona Bray delivered an interactive presentation inspired by her science-themed book, Mossby's 
Magic Carpet, which is "filled with factual information on a wide variety of topics including flight, gravity, 
magnetism, weather, astronomy, first aid and survival techniques, and others." 29 people, mostly school-
age children with parents and caregivers, attended the program on February 15th at the Central Library.  

The Central Library held a Medical-Cal/Covered California Enrollment event as a partnership with certified 
sign-up specialists from Cal’s student chapter of the California Physicians Alliance. These young adult 
enrollment specialists are learning how to build partnerships in their community while sharing their 
specialized skills with uninsured community members and older adults. At this event, a senior patron was 
able to navigate the challenging process of renewing her Medi-Cal benefits with the assistance of these 
enrollment specialists. Staff look forward to continuing to evaluate this program to make it as accessible as 
possible for the library’s community.  Several people stopped in to talk and one patron was signed up in this 
first iteration.  

Fifteen community members participated in our Yarn and Fabric Swap held at the Central Library on 
February 2.  Everyone was welcomed in to trade materials that were in clean and re-useable conditions to 
inspire their next textile project. 

Collections  
As part of BPL’s collection management plan, the 
Library is committed to building up-to-date 
collections that reflect the diversity of community 
interests, perspectives, and experiences.  As part 
of that process, Librarians from all of the 
branches were able to select materials from a 
staff-developed list of nonfiction and fiction 
materials about the LGBTQ experience. Here is a 
small sample of the new materials as they were 
being received: 

Materials were ordered by such authors as 
Virginia Woolf, James Baldwin, Oscar Wilde, 
Alison Bechdel and many others. Special thanks to 
Librarians Kay Finney and Wendy Hyman along 
with Senior Librarian Rosie Merlin for developing 
the list! 

https://www.eastbayexpress.com/oakland/black-panther-party-archive-at-tarea-hall-pittman-south-branch/Event?oid=24639908
http://www.dailycal.org/2019/02/07/black-panther-party-archive-exhibit-offers-intimate-account-of-rich-bay-area-history/


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORT 
Director’s Report Page 4 
 
Migration to The Library Corporation’s (TLC) CARL X  
The Library remains in the design phase of the project to implement the CARL X Integrated Library System. 
Major tasks during this phase of the project include preparing catalog and patron data for export; reviewing 
and documenting current system codes and settings; and setting up the technical “back-end” for 
connectivity to the CARL X cloud-hosted system.  

The ILS steering committee continues to meet via conference call with TLC staff twice weekly to discuss the 
overview of the migration, and more specifically to work on design sessions for the numerous modules and 
aspects of the system. The design sessions include staff from all classifications, who are helping to 
communicate to TLC how it will best work with our in-house workflows. In addition, TLC has assigned many 
‘workbooks’ that help staff define settings and options for system. IT staff are working with TLC on the 
systems that will store and transmit information, and are also providing snapshots off our database so that 
our existing data can be smoothly migrated to the new ILS.  

History Collection Assessment 
The Library was awarded a Collection Preservation Assessment Award from the California Assessment 
Program which is an organization funded by the California State Library. The Collection Preservation 
Assessment Program (CPAP), as described on the organization’s website, is “designed to help small and mid-
sized libraries and archives plan improvements in care for their permanent and historical collections.” The 
Library requested assessment of the local historical materials currently in the History Room at the Central 
library and in the storage area of the first floor Circulation room. 

The assessment will include site visits and collection assessment by experts in California history and 
documents; interviews of staff; and will result in a report detailing findings, recommendations in priority 
order, and justifications for those recommendations and priorities; along with follow up advisement on 
implementation of the recommendations. The request was developed by Library Services Manager Anna 
Gonzalez, Librarian II Jef Findley, and Acting Director of Library Services Elliot Warren. 

Onboarding 
The Library introduced a new onboarding process for four newly hired or promoted staff-members that is 
designed to familiarize them with Library procedures, policies, practices, and job expectations prior to being 
assigned their everyday work. Dozens of staff-members, from Library Assistants to the upper levels of 
management have been meeting with the new staff-members and they are touring each of the facilities as 
well.   

 

CONTACT PERSON 
Elliot Warren, Acting Director of Library Services, Library, 510-981-6195 
 


	2019 03 06 BOLT Agenda Regular Meeting v1
	2019 02 06 BOLT Minutes Regular Meeting vdraft1
	2019 02 06 IMLS Grant
	2019 03 06 Xfr TBR Funds_v1
	2018 03 06 Director's report v2
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	FY20_21 Biennial Budget_4FEB19_v1.pdf
	DRAFT-FY Biennial Budget �2020 & 2021 �Board of Library Trustees�Workshop – March 6, 2019
	Slide Number 2
	Key Ongoing Efforts into FY 2020-2021
	Projected Revenue and Fund Balance
	FY20: Projected Revenues�Funds – 301 and 304 �$20,188,598
	Library Tax Fund (301)�CPI vs PIG
	FY20: Projected Expenditures�BPL only: Funds – 301 and 304�$22,872,091
	Library Tax Fund (301)�FY17 – FY21 ($)
	Library Tax Fund (301)�Fund Balance FY17 – FY21 ($)
	Library Tax Fund (301)�Revenues vs Expenditures FY10 – FY21
	Library Tax Fund (301)�BPL-only: Staffing to Total Expenditures
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Biennial Budget Development�Calendar




